NATIONAL
MUSEUM

THE

REDACTED Minutes of the NMRN Trustee Board held on 23 April

Present:

Sir Philip Jones

Mark Anderson (MA)
Kath Biggs (KB)
Andrew Burnett (AB)
Philip Dolling (PD)
Colin Evans (CE)
Sarah Humphrey (SH)
Helen Jackson (HJ)
Mary Montagu-Scott (MMS)
Jon Pentreath (JP)
Ged Salzano (GS)
Mike Scott (MSc)
Alison Start (AS)

Tom Wright (TW)

In Attendance

Matthew Sheldon (MSh)
Andrew Baines (ABa|)

Sarah Dennis (SD)

Graeme Fraser (GF)

Richard Hatfield (RH)

Becca Hubbard (BH)

Helen McKenna Aspell (HMA)

Sir Charles Montgomery (CM)
Martin Quinn (MQ)

Nicky Tregear (NT)

Millie Tomlin Davis (MTD)
Ollie Turpin (OT)

George Wilson (GW)

2025 in SH12 and via Teams

Chair (left 13:00)
(remote)

(remote)
(remote, left at 11.30)

Chair (from 13:00 onwards)

Chief Executive Officer

Executive Director: Museum Operations

Executive Director: Finance and Resources

Navy Command (NC) (remote)

Chair NMRN Operations

Associate Executive Director: Marketing (left after item 4)
Associate Executive Director: Fundraising and Partnerships
(joined for agenda item 5.1 only)

Chair HMS Victory Preservation Company, left after item 4)
Chair HMS Caroline Preservation Company

Head of Governance and Assurance

NMRN Youth Advisory Group Representative

NMRN Youth Advisory Group Representative

Head of IT (joined for item 5.3 only)

1. Introductions, Apologies and Declaration of Interests
1.1. The Chair welcomed MQ and CM to the meeting.

NMRN Trustee Board 23 April 2025 - REDACTED



1.2. The Chair thanked the Executive for the quality and standard of the reports presented
and noted that although the meeting pack was large, the detail was necessary to
support the critical decisions needed.

1.3. There were no apologies or new declarations of interests.

2. Minutes of the Previous Meeting

2.1. The minutes of the 23 January 2025 meeting were approved as a true and accurate
record.

3. Matters Arising and Action Grid

3.1. The actions outlined within the action grid were noted. It was confirmed that the
outstanding action regarding capital projects would also be covered within the agenda.
3.2. There were no further matters arising.

4. Strategy Session
4.1. HMSVPCo Strategic Intent
4.1.1. CM introduced the HMSVPCo Strategic Intent, outlining the ambition for the next
10 years and establishing a framework for the period beyond that.

4.2. NMRN Strategy (including vision, values and implementation)

4.2.1. MSh introduced the strategy and outlined the challenges over the next 10 years.
The strategy would define how the NMRN was unique and how it would develop
over this period. An internal launch of the strategy was planned for the Autumn.

4.2.2. The Strategy provided a framework under which further actions would be
developed. The vision and values had been reviewed.

4.2.3. The values were agreed.

4.2.4. Brand Guidelines

4.2.5. Thanks were passed to BH and TW for producing the guidelines that were

impactful and agreed.

4.2.6. The Chair noted that further work would be completed OOC on the vision and
shaping of brand names for the museums. The strategy documents were agreed
in principle and would be returned to the Board once the additional work
identified was completed.

4.3. NMRN 10 Year Financial Plan

4.3.1. SD introduced the first NMRN 10-Year Financial Plan, designed to articulate the

long-term challenges facing the organisation

4.3.2. SD noted that the plan model could accommodate different assumptions
including inflation indices and the assumptions applied to the version presented
were set out in the accompanying report.

4.3.3. The Board agreed the current financial structure was untenable and changes
were required.

4.3.4. The revised Framework Document required under HM Treasury’s “Managing
Public Money” to support the flow of Grant In Aid from Navy Command to the
NMRN had been shared with the Board in advance of the meeting for approval.
Thanks were passed to Navy Command (NC) for their work with SD in tailoring

NMRN Trustee Board 23 April 2025 - REDACTED



the generic template document to better align with the NMRN’s governance
model. The Board APPROVED the Framework Document.

5. Trustee Business

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

HMA provided an overview of the current position of the BH6 project, and the
funding achieved to date. HMA outlined next steps, and the risks and challenges
ahead. The new Royal Marines Experience would make a significant positive
HMA provided an overview of the experiences that would be showcased within
MSh noted that HMA was critical in progressing fundraising for the project and
ABa would continue the operational delivery. The report highlighted how the

project would be governed, and it was confirmed that there was a strong and

Following Board discussions of the recommendations within the report, the

The Executive to seek financing option, to be agreed OOC. APPROVED.
The Board was asked to approve moving into the delivery phase and signing the

The RN Communications team would be updated and invited to contribute

MSh provided an overview of the work that had progressed since the last

Looking ahead, the Corporate Plan would be shared at the next meeting.
MSh highlighted that the Christmas stakeholder event was planned for the 2™

SD noted that at the last NMRN Board meeting, the Executive were tasked to
provide a firm solution for the IT security infrastructure. The report presented

BH6 Project
5.1.1.
contribution and benefit to all partners at PHD.
5.1.2.
BH6 and the activities available to the visitors.
5.1.3.
confident project and client team.
5.1.4.
following outcomes were reached:
BH6 Delivery stage project budget APPROVED
Transfer of unrestricted funds and restricted funds. APPROVED
The project cashflow was NOTED.
NLHF contract for funding. APPROVED.
5.1.5.
following discussion with the NLHF teams.
CEO Report
5.2.1.
meeting.
5.2.2.
5.2.3.
December and all Trustees were invited.
Cyber Update and IT Systems Rebuild Proposal
5.3.1.
outlined the proposal and the decisions required by the Board.
5.3.2. The Board:

NOTED the considerations taken to inform the solutions proposal, including the
comparison of cloud infrastructure solutions vs on premise infrastructure
solutions, and the benefits and drawbacks of each.

APPROVED the recommended infrastructure solution proposal for restoring and
rebuilding the NMRN’s IT systems and security solutions.

APPROVED the release of free reserves to allow full completion of the proposed
infrastructure and security solutions for the NMRN’s IT estate. This would
facilitate the continued restoration of services, provision of new infrastructure
and the deployment of greatly enhanced cyber security tools and mechanisms.

NMRN Trustee Board 23 April 2025 - REDACTED



5.3.3.

APPROVED the additional revenue budget requirement for 2025-26 and future
years to deliver the infrastructure security enhancements.
APPROVED the release of free reserves to allow systems including door control
and collections scanning systems to be reinstated.
NOTED the rebuild for key systems, was underway and approved the release of
free reserves to fund this part of the project.
The costs of the project summaries were NOTED.
NOTED the procurement and implementation plan.
It was noted that although AGC had oversight of the response to the attack and
the development of the project initially, oversight of the delivery of the approved
project would pass to the NMRN Operations Programme Board.

5.4. Financial Reports

5.4.1.
5.4.2.

5.4.3.
5.4.4.

5.45.

2024-25 Current Financial Position
On review of the reports the Board:

NOTED the key financial data as at the close of Period 11 and forecast outturn
for the 2024-25 financial year.
APPROVED the designation of the unrestricted donation
APPROVED the release of NMRNO’s RMM Memorial Garden restricted reserve
as a grant to the Royal Marines Association Portsmouth to enable the continued
flying of the Union Jack on the Yomper.
APPROVED the carry over to 2025-26 of the drawdown from free reserves to
cover implementation costs of the new ticketing system (previously approved in
Jan 2025 for 2024-25).
APPROVED the carry over to 2025-26 of the additional drawdown from free
reserves to cover the branding project (previously approved in Jan 2025 for
2024-25).
APPROVED the grant from NMRN to HMS Trincomalee Trust to cover the
balance of that entity’s forecast revenue costs for the year to 31 March 2025.
APPROVED the grant from NMRN to NMRN Hartlepool to cover that entities
forecast revenue costs for the year to 31 March 2025.

Project/Fund Updates and 2025-26 Project/Fund Expenditure Approval

The Board:
NOTED the provisional annual expenditure on the various projects/funds

approved by the Board for the 2024-25 financial year. The expenditure shown

was to 31 March 2025 but was subject to close of accounts and audit.

NOTED the reconciliation between January 2024 Board approvals and the

approved spend position as reported in the table in paragraph three.
Specifically, the Board:

NOTED the extant approvals for the 2025-26 financial year.

APPROVED remaining project expenditure on the AIM Connected Communities

Fund and noted the repayment of any remaining unspent balance.

APPROVED project/fund expenditures for the 2025-26 financial year as outlined

in the report.

5.5. NMRN Hartlepool Update

NMRN Trustee Board 23 April 2025 - REDACTED



5.5.1. MSh noted that the purpose of the paper was to reflect on the activity and
progress made since the last meeting.

5.5.2. MA reinforced that the paper reflected the strategic importance of NMRN in
Hartlepool.

5.5.3. MA provided an overview from the NMRN Hartlepool Board meeting and
emphasised the importance of continued dialogue with the stakeholder
community.

5.5.4. The Board thanked MA for his support and work completed on behalf of the
Board. The report was noted.

5.6. 2024-25 Corporate Plan Update
5.6.1. It was agreed that this would be returned to at the next meeting.
5.7. Health and Safety Report

5.7.1. Onreview of the report, it was noted that there had been no significant health

and safety incidents reported for Q4. Three near misses had been recorded, and

these were outlined within section 5 of the report.

5.7.2. SD highlighted that the Risk Definitions had been updated within the appendix to
the report and the Board were asked to approve them. The Chair asked for
further clarity on use of the ‘marginal’ risk definition and also asked if both table
1 and table 2 within the report appendix could be aligned to ensure consistency.

5.7.3. The Health and Safety Report was noted.

5.8. The People Summary report
5.8.1. SD noted that the quarterly summary report did not currently include the new

mandatory asbestos awareness training but this would be added to future
reports. The Board asked about mandatory training compliance rates and staff
turnover.

6. Governance — Feedback from Committees
6.1. Update on Implementation of the Governance Structure Decisions of October 2024
(CONFIDENTIAL) MQ and RH left the meeting
6.2. NMRN Operations
6.2.1. It was noted that visitor numbers were not included but would be added to the next
CEO report. MSh noted that the last week witnessed good trading activity and visitor
numbers were better in the second week of the Easter holidays.
6.3. Audit and Governance Committee
6.3.1. ABu provided an overview of the meeting noting that the response to the cyber-
attack and increasing audit fees were discussed in depth. It was noted that a plan
had been agreed with the auditors to achieve the 2024-25 filing deadlines.
6.3.2. The Board APPROVED the Governance Principles Manual. The manual would be
rolled out across the NMRN Group.
6.4. CRA Committee
6.4.1. ABu provided an overview of the meeting.
6.4.2. The TOR was APPROVED.
6.5. Fundraising Committee
6.5.1. MMS provided an overview of the meeting and highlighted that the key discussion
related to BH6 funding requirements.
6.6. Youth Advisory Group
6.6.1. AS provided an overview of the meeting and noted that the YAG had been tasked

NMRN Trustee Board 23 April 2025 - REDACTED



with visiting the NMRN sites and to feedback their visitor experience. MTD provided
an overview of the feedback from the visits and noted that a report would be shared
with the Board once it had progressed through BH. MTD thanked all staff at the sites
who made the YAG members feel welcome.

6.6.2. OT noted that the YAG had also provided feedback on branding and values with BH.

7. Risk Register Review
7.1. The Board noted the risk register and the work undertaken by the AGC on their review
of risks.

8. Any Other Business
8.1. The Memorial to the Irish Sailor
8.1.1. The Board confirmed that it would remain an interested stakeholder in the project.
MQ and MSc would relay the discussion held to the HMS Caroline Preservation

Company and the Working Group.
8.2. StaffSavvy
8.2.1. NT noted that to ensure all Trustees’ data was secure, there was an option to use
the current staff management system StaffSavvy to record and hold personal details.
Mandatory training would also be shared with the Trustees through the system. All
Trustees agreed to be added to StaffSavvy.

9. Date of Next Meeting
9.1. 16th July 2025

Signed: Chair of

Date:

NMRN Trustee Board 23 April 2025 - REDACTED



